ﬁ ﬁ’ Green Cement Private Limited
Babukhan Millenium, Centre,

6-3-1099/1 100, Mo, 702, Block-A,
Somajiguda, Hyderabad, Telangana,
India, Pincode - 500082

Tel: +91-40-6819 D200

CIN: — U269 TG2019PTC 136901

NOTICE

Motice is hereby given that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of JSW Graen
Cement Private Limited will be held on Friday, June 13, 2025 at 11.00 a.m. at JSW Cemenl! Limiled,
Babukhan Millenium Centre, 6-3-1099/1100, No, 702, A Block, Hyderabad, Somaliguda, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India, 500082 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To cansider and, if thought fit, o pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financial
yaar ended 31% March, 2025, togethar with the Reports of the Board of Direciors and the Statutory
Auditor thereon, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

"RESOLVED THAT the audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the
firancial year ended 31% March, 2025, together with the Repont of the Statutory Auditor thereon,
be and are heraby received, considerad and adopted.”

2. To re-appoint Mr. Nilesh Narwekar (DIN: 06808108) as a Director:

To consider and If thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr, Nilesh Narwekar (DIN: 08208109), Director of the Company, who retires
by rotation pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and being sligible for re-
appointment, be and s hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company.”

3. Approval for fixation of remuneration of Cost Auditor:

Ta consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s}. the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the lime being in force), consent of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration of Rs 1,65 000/- plus out of
pocket expensas, travelling and other expenses {which would be reimbursable at actuals) plus
taxes, wharever applicable, fo the Cost Auditor as appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2025-26,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorised to take all necessary actions Including filing of forms with the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs to give affect to this resclution.”
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4. To re-appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 138({1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
rules made thereundear, M/s Shah Gupla & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Reagistration
Number: 109574W) be and is hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for tha
sacond term of five years, to hold office from the conclusion of this 8" Annual Genaral Mesting till
the conclusion of 11" Annual Genaral Meeting of the Company. at a remuneralion as may be
mutually agreed upon between the Board and the aforesaid Auditors”,

vy order of the Board of Directors

—

o~

Director
IN: DO387B15

.

Place: Mumbai
Dated : 15.05.2025
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NOTES:

1. A Shareholder Entitied to attend and vote at the mesting and is entitied to appoint a proxy to attend
and, on a poll, vote instead of himself/hersalf and such proxy needs not be a shareholder of the
Company.

Shareholders ! Proxies should bring thelr attendance slip duly filled In for aliending the meeting.

3. Copies of Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders are
requested to bring their coples to the meating.

4. The instrument(s) appointing the Proxy, If any, shall be depositad at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the commencement of the Meeting and in
default, the instrument of Proxy shall be treated as invalid. Proxies shall not have any right to speak
at the Meeling. Proxies submitted on behall of limited companies, soclelies, parinership firms, ele.
must be supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable, be issued by the Shareholder
organization.

5. Corporate members are requested to send a duly cerified copy of the resolution autharizing their
representatives to attend and vote at the masting

6. Shareholders are requested to intimate the Company at its registered office, immediately of any
changa in thair mailing address or emall address in respect of equity shares held.

7. Shareholders desirous of having any information regarding Accounts are requasted to address their
queries to the Accounts Officer at the Registered Office of the Company at least seven days before
the dale of the Annual General Meeting, so that the reguisite information can be made available al
the Annual General Meeling.

8. All documents referred 1o in the accompanying Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days if the Company, during

office hours, up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

Shareholders/Proxias are requested to bring the attendance slip duly filled.

L

w
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EXPLAMNATORY STATEMENT
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102{1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for ltem No. 3 of the
accompanying notice is as under:

ltam no. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 15" May 2025 has considered and
approved the appointment of Mis Kishare Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountant as Cost Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2025-26 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,65,000 {Rupees One Lakh Sixty-
Five Thousand only) plus out of pocket expenses, travelling and other expenses (which would be
reimbursable at actuals) plus taxes, wherever applicable.

Pursuant to section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration, as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and is
required to be subsequently approved by the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relative is concemead
and interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution,

The Board recommend the resolution set out at item No. 3 of the notice for your approval,

By otder of the Board of Directors
:Cti':/

.E-: Girtish Menon
~1 rector
DIN: 09387815

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 15.05.2025
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BOARD REPORT
To the Membars,

Your Directors have the pleasure of submiting the Sixth Annual Report of JSW Green Cement Private
Limited togather with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the vear ended 31st March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Company’s financial perfarmance for the year under reviaw is given hereundar,

(% In Lakh)
Particulars Standalone | Standalone
As on March, 2025 As on March, 2024

Revenue from operations 30,279.45 18648.69

Other Income 4228 101.35
Total Income 30,321.73 | 18750.04
| Expense 30,354.24 | 1924937

ProfitLoss bafore interast, tax,

depreciation and amortization (#2.51) #en.3%

Finance Cosls - -

Depreciation and amortization expense - -

Profit/(Loss ) before tax | {32.51) (499,33}

Tax expense

Deferred Tax Ll (207.88)
| Profit/{Loss) for the year ' {23.48) {291.45)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND OUTLOOK:
During the FY 2024-25, the Company has registered revenue from operations at  30,279.45 Lakhs as
compared to ¥ 16,648.69 Lakhs in the previous year. The Loss for the year was at ¥ 23.48 Lakhs as
compared to ¥ 291.45 Lakhs in the previous year,

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
Mo amount is proposed 1o be lransferred to Reservas, The Loss of # 23,48 lakhs was transferred to the
Profit and Loss Account in Resarves.

4, DIVIDEND:
Your Directors have not recommended any Dividend on Equity Shares for the period ended March 31,
2025 due to incurring loss during the year under review.

5. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Mo material changes and commilments affecting the financial position of the Company cccurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial stalement relates on the date of this report.

6. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There are no changes in the nature of the Company's business during the year under review. Your
Company conlinues to be in the business of manufacturing and related activities,
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7. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY(JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
During the period under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate
Company.

8. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:
Since there was no unpaidiunclaimed Dividend declared and pald last year, the provisions of Section
125 of the Companias Act, 2013 do not apply.

0. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
ouUTGO:

{A] Conservation of energy and Technology absorption;
The business operations of your Company are not energy-intensive. However, sufficient measures
have been taken o minimize the energy consumption.

(B) Foreign exchange earnings and OQutgo:
There are no foreign exchange earmings and outge for the Company during the year,

10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companles Act, 2013, your Company does not come under the aeligible
criteria for developing and Implementing the policy on corporate socfal responsibilily. Hence, no
amount has been spent by the Company,

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The details of Loans extended/Guarantees provided/investments made by the Company in terms of

section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the financial statements.

12. BORROWINGS:
The details of borrowing avallad by the Company form part of the financial statements.

13. WEB LINK FOR ANNUAL RETURN:
The Company does net have a website. Therefore, the annual return is not published on any website,
The Annual Return is made available at the Registered Office of the Company.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
All contracts / arrangement! transactions entered by the Company during the year with the related
parties were in the ardinary course of business and on arm's length basis. The details of transactions
have been provided in "Annexure-1" in Form AQC-2.

15. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
Mis Shah Gupta & Co. Chartered Accountants of Mumbai, Chartered Accountants, having Firm
registration no: 108574W, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the period of five
years, ie. lo hold office from the conclusion of 1% Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of Gth
Annual General Meeting of the Company. The Company had obtained a certificate confirming their
eligibility to continue as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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The Board of Directors recommend the re-appointment of Mis Shah Gupta & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for a second term of five years, from the
conclusion of 6th Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of the 11th Annual
General Meeting of the Company, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
Genearal Mesting.

The Auditor has provided a certificate confirming their eligibility for re-appointmeant as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, and has been performing their duties with dillgence and professionalism.
The Board believes that the continued engagement of Mis Shah Gupta & Co,, Chartered Accountants,
will ensure the maintenance of high standards of financial reporting and compliance.

16. STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
The statutory auditors' report does not contaln any qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks. In
accardance with the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules issued thersunder
obtaining a ‘Secretarial Audit Reportl' from an independent practicing company secretary does not
apply to the Company.

17. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS U/S 143(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
During the year under raview, the statutory auditars of the Company have not reported any fraud under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,

18. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
During the pericd under review, the Company has complied with Secretarial Standards 1 and 2, issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of Indla.

19. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:
The Board of Directors of the Company met 6 times during the finandal year under review. The
meetings wera held on 10.05.2024, 29.07.2024, 27.09.2024, 18.12.2024 24.01.2025 and 07.03.2025.
The Intervening gap between the mestings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013.

20. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
During the year under review, there was no change in the constitution of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Pursuanl to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nilesh Narwekar (DIN:
0B208109), director, is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM of the Company and being
eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, The Board recommends his re-appointment.

There Is no requirement for the Company to appoint Key Managerial Parsonnel in accardance with
saction 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules issued thereunder. During the year under
review, none of the directors of the Company had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.,

21. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
In accordance with saction 149 of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the rules issued there under, there is
no requirement to appoint Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.
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STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SUB-SECTION
{6) OF SECTION 149:;
This provision is not applicable to the Company.,

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules issued there under, the
constitution of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee is not applicable to
the Company.

Further, the provisions of the establishment of 5 vigil mechanism as required under the provisions of
saction 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 are nol applicable lo the Campany.

COST RECORDS:

Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company Is required to maintain cost
records as specified by the Central Government and accordingly such accounts and records are made
and maintained,

Pursuant to Section 148(2) of the Companles Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the Board, at its meeting held on 10th May, 2024 has appointed M/s:
Kishore Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountanis to conduct the audit of the cost accounting records of
the Company for FY 2024-25 on a remuneration of 1,50 000 (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand only)
plus out of pocket expenses, fravelling and other expenses (which would be reimbursable at actuals)
plus taxes, wherevar applicable. The remuneration was subject to the ralification of the Members in
terms of Seclion 148 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and
accordingly was placed and approved by the Sharsholders at the 5th Annual General Mesting.

The due date for filing the Cost Audit Report for the financlal year ended 31st March, 2024 was 30th
September, 2024, and the Cost Audit Report was filed in XBRL mode on 20th August, 2024,

POLICY ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. Your
Directors further apprisa that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to
Sexusl Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, As
there are no women employees in the Company, hence presently there are no policy related to sexual
harassment in cases at workplace by the Company in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassmenl of
Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the Rules thereunder,

The Company has not constituted a commities under the Sexual Harassment of Women & Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 as the Company does not have adequate number of
employees. Further the Company doesn't have women employees.

25. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

During the year, the Company has neither made any application nor has any proceedings pending
under the Insolvancy and Bankruptcy Code. 2016. There were no instances of one-time setlement
with any Bank or Financial institution.
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26. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement; -

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accountling standards had been followed
aleng with proper explanation relating to material departuras;

b} the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of Lthis Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d} the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} the direclors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating sffectively.

27. FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepied any deposits during the year,

28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
The Company has in place a risk managament policy for the various services it offers to identify
claments of risk that may threalen the axistence of the Company,

29. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL:
During the year under review, there was no change In the Authorised caplial and paid-up share capital
of the Company.

30. SIGNIFICANT & AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS:
There are no significant and maleral orders passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals against
the Company which can be constructed as impacting the going concern status and the Company's
aperations in the fulure.

31. DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
The Company has maintained adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements during
the year. Such controls were examined and no reporlable materal weakness in the design or
operations were ohserved,

32. DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION:
The provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appaintment and
Remuneration of Manageral Personnal) Rules, 2014, are not applicable as none of the employees
were in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits specified therein.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consuitants, and
various Governmant Authorities for their continued support extended to your Company activilies during
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the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the sharehalders for thair support
and confidence reposed on your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N

Rustagi Girish Menon
Director Director
DIN : 07742914 DIN : 09387815

Date: 15.05.2025 an
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure-|
Form No. ADC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to In sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis- Not applicable

2, Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis- For details of
transactions during the year refer note 30of the financial slatements. The materials fransaclions are as

under:
(% In Lakhs)
Salient terms of
Name{s) of the Mature of Duration of the | the contracts or Date(s) of A t oaid
related party and contracts/ | contracts / arrangements or approval by - :du; Tﬂ
nature of arrangements/ | arrangements/ transactions the Board, if if an ORS,
relationship transactions transactions including the any 4
value, if any
| JSW Cement Limited | Purchase of
(Holding Campany) | Goods 12 months Cement and GGBS NIL
JSW Global ;
Business Solution Aval:;r;g 12 months :"HTW Support NIL
Limited (Others) bt e
JSW One
Distribution Sales of Goods | 12 manths RMC NIL
Limited{Cthers)
i | RMC and
fgr:ms? Limited | oates of Goods | 12 months Construction NIL
e Chemical products
Jew Steel Coated
Products Ltd Sales of Goods | 12 months ;"““’"‘;"“”m | 10% May 2024 | NIL
(Others) emical products
JESW Vijayanagar ,
Metallics Limited Sales of Goods | 12 months gh':*:ml’“':lt'“:mu e NIL
(Others) R
JSW Cement Limited | Construction
(Holding Company) Sales of Goods | 12 months Chimical pdosts MIL
J5W Techno Project
Management Sales of Goods | 12 months Gonstruction MIL
Chemical products
Limited (Others)
J5W Jaigarh Port i
5 Sales of Goods | 12 months SO NIL

Limited

Chemical products
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JSW Steel Limited 1 Purchase of 12 months RMC 53.05

(Others) Goads

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Girish Menon
Director
DIN : 09387815

Date: Mumbaij
Place: 15.05.2025
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Shah Guﬁm & Co.

Chartered Accountants
INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS” REPORT
Tio the Members of ISW Green Cemant Private Limitad
Report on the Auwdlt of the finandal statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSW Green Cemnent Private Limited {*the Company”}, which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss induding the statement of other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of eash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the finandal statements, Including
asummary of material accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements” ).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, {“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss and
ather comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sub-section (10)
af Section 143 of the Act. Our responsitdlities under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibiities forthe Audit
of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
Ltatements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requiremnents and the Code of Ethics. We beliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide 2 basis for our audit opinlon.on the financial ststements.,

Information Other than the financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Company's Management and Board of Directors & responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information incleded tn the Company's Annual Report but-does rat include the financial statements and our suditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

in connection with our audit of the Tinandial statements, our responsibility Is to resd the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information s materfally inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the audit or
atherwise appears to be matesizlly misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there k a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fadt. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Fesponsibilities of the Management and Board of directors for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in sub-section {5) of Section 134 of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a troe and fair view of the financial position, financial performance induding other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles penerally accepted
in india, induding the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies [Indfan Accounting
Standards) Rudes, 2015, & amenderd. This responsibility also indudes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities;
selection and application of appropriate sccounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are ressonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate Internal financial controls that were oparating effactively for enzuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that ghve a trus
andfalrview and & free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to poing concern and using the going concern hasks of accounting unless the
management efther intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operatlons, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements & a whaole are free from materisl
misstatement, whether due to Traud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that incdudes aur apinion. Reasonabie ssurance & a high
level of atsurance but Is not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect 2 material misstatemont
when it exists. Misstatements can arisé from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregare, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedsions of wsers taken on the besis of these financial statements.

A part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticiem throughout the audit,
We also:

Identily and assess the risks of material ivisstaternent of the finandal statements, whether dueto fraud orertor, design and perfenm
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinien. The risk of not detecting a material mbstatemant resufting from fraud & higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may nvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control,

Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
tircumstances, Under dause (1) of sub-section {3} of Section 143 of the Act, we are also recponsible for eXpressing our opinion on

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statemants in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals,

Evaluate the appropristeness of decounting palicies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates and related disclasures
marde by the management.

Condude on the appropriateness of Management's and Board of Directors uss of the going concem basis of accounting in preparation
of finandal statement and, based on the audit svidence obtained, whether a materfal uncertainty exdsts related to evenls or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue a5 a poing concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's feport to the nelated disclosures in the financlal statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's repori. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as.a going concerm.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underying transactions and events in 3 manner that achloves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governantce regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and liming of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identily during our audi,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and Lo communicate with them all redationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safoguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies [Auditors Repart) Qrder, 2020 (“the Crder), Esued by the Central Government of India In terms of
sub-section [11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the *Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowdedge and belisf were necessary
for the purposes of our audit,

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

t. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and lass including the statement of ather comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements caomply with the Accounting Standands specified under Section 133 of the A,
read with Companias (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

€. On the basks of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of

Directors, none of the direcdiors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section
(2} of Section 164 of the Ad,

f. With respect to the adequary of the internal financial controls with reference to ﬁnaj:@neg\u of the Company and the
Operating effectiveness of such controk, refer to our separate Report in “Annexurn Ao g \\
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g. The Company has not pald / not provided for managesial remuneration in the books of accounts. Accordingly, provisions of
mmﬂmnahnmnpﬂuhhmthecmm.

h, With respect to the other matlers o be Inehaded In the Auditors Report in accondance with fule (11) of the Compankes {Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, s amended, in aur opinion and to the bost of our information and according to the explanations ghven

To s

i, The Company does not have any pmungmmuwmmu lmpact its Minancial position in the financial statements —
Refer note 31 (a) of the financial statements;

il The Company has made a provision, as requined under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material loresecable
lasees, i any, on long-term contracts including derivathve coniracts,
fil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.
iv. {a] The Management has represented that, to the best of s knowledge and bedief, no funds have been advanced or

(b

f<)

Inaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium of any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to of in any other persans or entities, Inciuding Toreign enty {"Intermediaries"), with the understanding.
whether recarded In writing or othorwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company ("Litimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Management has represented that, Lo ﬂ\ebsluflskrwmwbdidﬁmfmtﬂﬁdlmﬂhermmﬁ
either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person of enty, inchuding foregn
entity { “Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend of invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoover
{*ultimate Beneficlarkes™) by ar on behall of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, secutity of thie |k from
or on behalf of the Ultknate Beneliciaries; and

Based on the awdit procedures that have been considered ressonable and appropriate on the circumstances, nothing
has cometo our noticethat has caused 1t o belisve that the representation under sub-dause (i) and i} of Rule 11{e],
as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared and pald dividend during the year.
. Asmore fully described in note 31 (i} to the financial statements, based on our examination which included test checks,

the Company has used aceounting seftware for maintaining its books of account which has a festure of recording adit
trail (edit log) Facility and the same was opesated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

Further, during the course of our autit we did not come acrass any instance of audit trail festure being tampered with,

in nespect of accounting software where the sudit trail has been enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has
been preservid by the Company & per the statutory regquirements for record retention 1o the extent it was enabled

and recorded in the respedive year.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firen feglstration No.: 109574W

Parth P Patel
Partner
M. No. 172670

UDIN: 251726T0BMKVEOQGGO2

Plaoe: Mumbal

Date: May 15, 2025

3of8|Page



mmnmﬂlwmmwm

Mmlduhp-wlphludﬂ‘m

Mlnmmludmhmmwmhdwwmhw&m

“MMWHMM.

In terms of the information and explanations soughl by i andl
us in the normal course of audit and to the

i)

(i

i

(v

v

fwii]

{viii)

hven by the company anid the books of account and recards examined by

best of our knowledge and biefel, wo state that:

fa} (A}  The Company has maintained proper records shpwing full particulars, Including guantitative detals and sltuation ol

property, plant and equipment.
()  Thelompany is mnhuhlupmpmrumﬂhahmmll particulars of intangible Assets.

{b) The Company has physically verified the property, phant and equipment In accordance with a program af varification, which
peovides for physical verification of all property, plant and cauipment at reasonable intervals. There was no material
discrepancies noticed on physical yerilication,

() m:c:mmmrdnsmthuldmvimmnhhwupmtfmhihemr,
fs not applicable to the Company,

(d) The Company has nat revalued its Property, Plant a
the year.

(e} MNo proceadings have been initiated during the year or are pending agalnst the Company for holding benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Aules made thereunder.

{a) Themsin!uri'ﬁmthndmmmmnmm:mmmwmnmlwdma#mwamln
wmthemagemdpmindmhwrﬂlmﬂnnwmmmtummpﬂmmmn&ﬂnmdm
physical verification of inventory by the Management, &< compared to book records were not materal and have been
wnwiﬂﬂrdmltmmm:mnhdmmwmu 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory
were noticed in respect of such physical verification,

{b) Duringthe year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Re.S crores, in aggregate from banks
and financial institutions. Accordingly, reporting under clagse 3 (i) (b) of the Crder s not applicabile to the Company.

The Company has not made investment in, mmﬂ&mvgwmnrmﬂwwmnnd ariy boans and advances in nature of loans,

spcured or unsecured to compandes, firms, limnited Habilicy partnerships, or other parties during the year, Accordingly, reporting

under clause 3 () (a), (b), (c) (), (e) and {f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any vesiments or mmmmmm:wmmlhipam:md

under Sactions mmmmrdhummpmhgmdudnﬂaﬂv}#mmunutwplnﬁetnmmmm.

The Company has mmwmmmwhnwmﬁMfmm%ﬂ are deemed to be deposits within

the meaning of sections Hm?ﬁdmmmmnmhnuduluu.ndur.lulhnmnﬂuﬂi[uummm. reporting under

clause 3 {v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. '
w\ehmtmﬂjrmﬁ!mdthemmwdnumHﬂn&mwmuﬁﬂlﬂhmn&si&ﬂﬂnﬂrﬁmﬂﬂﬂ]ﬁﬂu

2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under subsection (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Ad, 2013, and are

of the opinion that, prima fode, the prescribed cost recards have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made 3

detailed examination of the seme.

[a) The Company is generally regular In depositing with the appropriste authorities undis puted statutory dues including provident
fund, employess’ state insurante, Income Tax, service ta, goods and service tay, cess and other material statutory ducs
wkdﬂemmmm;mmmmmmm@mmsﬁwnmmmmmnu undisputed amounts payable in
rﬂpeﬁdlnmmemmﬁulmgnmhmdmnkeﬂummﬂuhmmﬂmhiﬁﬂﬂﬂdmﬂﬂﬂuwmnmamﬂmlt
ﬂmwarmﬂ,lmapunfmtulmsltnmmimm the date they became payable.

(b} rmuunnamurmmwﬂhunmﬂnmgmmm“wrwm!mmnw,:uvolmm,mw{mm.wlm
added tax, and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or discosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax

assessments under the Inesme Tat Act, 1961 a8 income during the year, Accordingly, reporting under clause 2 (vill) of the Order &

not applicabli to the Company.

(a) Tbecﬂnpawhnnutd-mmdrnuwmmdhnmmdjmmnmhpurhthepwmn:dlnmmlumfhndur.

() szhum been declared Wil Defaulter by any bank or financlal institution or government or any government

(e] :mu&!ﬂ by wiay of the term loans have been mﬁmmmc«mmmmuﬂmrmmwmmmu

(d) The Company has not obtained any short-term loans during the year. Accor
Is not applicable to the Company,

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {i) (c) of the Order

nd Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible assets during

under clause 3 (1x) (d) of the Order
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(x)

()

[}

(xdH)

]

[xv)

v}

{xvii)

(i)

{xx)

{e] The Company does not hold any Investmaent In any sulnidiary, associate or jolnt venture (s defined under the Act) during the
year ended March 31, 2025, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ix) (&) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

il The Company does not hold amy investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the
year ended March 31, 2025. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {ix) (1) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{2) The Company has not raked any money by way of initial public offer of further public offer (including debt instruments) during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under dause 3 (x] (a} of the Order b not applicable to the Company.

{b)  The Compaivy has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 () (b) of the Order is not applicable 1o the Company.

fa) Mo materfal fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the At has been filed by cost auditor/secretarial suditor
or by 15 in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government

{e] Nowhistie-blower complsints have been recelved during the year by the Company.

The Company Is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {xdi) (a), (b) and (c) of

the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The

details of such relsted party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting

Standard 24 “Related Party Disdusures” specfied under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company i not required to constitute

an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the reparting under chase 3 (2 of the Order i

not applicable to the Company.,

[a) The internal audit of the Company i covered under the group internal gudit pursuant to which an internal audit s carred out
tvery year. In our opinfon, the Company’s intemal sudit system & commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b} The reports of the Intemal Auditor for the year under audll have been considered by us.

Thie Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting

under clawse 3 (xv) of the Order & not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 4508 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under dause 3 (xi) (a) of the Order is not applicable Lo the Company.

(b} The Company is not engaged in any non-banking financial / housing firance activities. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3 [wovi) (b) of the Order [s not applicable to the Company.

(¢} The Company bs not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under dause 3 [xi) {c) of the Order s not applicable to the Company.

(d)  We have been informed by the management that as at March 31, 2025 as per the definition of Growp under Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016, there is one Core Investment Company (OC) which Is registered and four CICs
which are not required to be registered with the Reserve Bank of Indig, forming pari of the promoter group,

The Company has nol incurred cash losses in the curment and immesdistely preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutery suditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause [oll) of the Order ks

nat applicable to the Comgany.

On the basks of the financial ratios as disclosed under note 31 ([ of the financial statements, ageing and expected dates of realization

of financial asets and payment of financial abiities, other information acoompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of

the Board of Directors 2nd management plans and based on our mamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to balieve that any material uncertainty exists 2 on the date of the audit report that

Company & not capabde of mesting its abilities existing at (he date of balance sheet 25 and when they fall due within a year ol ong

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, stute that this i not an assurance as (o Uhe Tuture viabilfty of the Company, We

further state that our reporting i based on thee facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all Fabilities falling due within a year of one year from the balance sheet date will pet discharged by the Company as
and when they Tall due.
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(o) The requirements of Enrpurmmﬁeﬁ-purﬁﬂiflﬁm contribution under sedtion 135 of the Act & not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 {x) () & (k) of the Order & not applicable to the Company.

{20} mmrﬂnﬁundnr:lum![ﬂﬂullhﬂtﬂurhmmplubhhmmdludhdmmﬂunnrhmdll:mtmmAm:dnghr.
no comment in respeet of the sald paragraph has been incloded in this report.

For SHAH GUPTA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo 109574W

P Patel
Partnes
M. No. 172670
UDIN: 251726 T0AMEVEDEE02
Mace: Mumbal
Date: May 15, 2025
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ANMNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

Hepart en the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the intemal finandal controls over fnancal reporting of J5W Green Cement Private Limited |“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2075 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended an that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management & responsible for establishing and malntaining internal finameial controls based on the internal control owver
financial reporting criveria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mate on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note") ssued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the ardery and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company™s policies,
the safepuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timoly proparation of reliable financial information, &5 requined under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our respansibility s to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under sub-section ( 10) of Section 143 of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an auwdit of internal financial controls, both ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note requine that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the auwdil to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was
-established and maintained and if such controk operated effectively in all material respoects.

Our audh Involves petflorming procedures tn obiain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal finandal controls system over
financial meporting with reflerence to these Mnancfal statements and thelr operating effectiveness. Gur audit of internal financial controls
owver finandal reparting included nbtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over finandal reporting with reference to these
financial stalements, ascessing Lhe risk that a material weakness exlsts, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selecied depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due Lo frand or error.

We believa that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Finandal Controls with referance to these financial statements

A Company's internal finandal control with reference to these financial statements is a process desipned to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finandal statements for external purpeses in accordance with
penerally acoepted accounting principles, A Company's internal financial control over finandal reporting with reference to these financial
statements indudes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded a5 necessary to permit preparation of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
andthat receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in- accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assumance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorsed acquisition, wse, ar
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a materal effect on the financlal stalements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with reference to these financial statements

Becawse of the inherent lmitations of internal fnanclal controks with reference to these financal statements, Including the possibility of
enllusion or improper management overnide of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detactod,
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to these financlal statements to future periods are
subjedt to the risk that the internal financdial control may become inadequate because of changes In conditlons, or that the degree of
eompliance with the policles or procedures may deteriorate,
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In our opinion, Ihtmm:whnhaﬂmuﬂmmm,nﬂmﬂemmmmmﬁwmhmﬁmﬂ
statements and such internal financial cortrols were operating effectively a5 at March 3L 2075, baved on the intermal financal controls
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For SHAH GUPTA & €O,
Charteted Accoumtants
Hiren Heghtration No.: 100574 P& -Q..t‘u FT"’T‘:\\

Parth P Patel

Partoes

M. No, 172610

LITIIN: 257 FIGANIMEVE D607
Place: Musnibal

Date: May 1%, 2027
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J5W GREEN CEMENT FRIVATE LINITED
BALAMCE SHEET AS AT 3151 MARCH 2025

1 Lakh
Particulars MNote A5 b Az at
Na. 3F1st March 2025 315t March 2024
I | ASSETS
Mon-Curment assats.
(a) Praperty, plant and equipment a 2,876,439 2,43553
[b) Capital work-in-progress 5 11343 168.78
{c} Right of use assets & BES.24 1,034 69
{d} Fntangitde assets 7 486 1.05
(e} Financlal assets
(I} Dther financial assets B 01,75 186,45
(M) Deferred tax assetsinet) g 1919 330,18
{E} InCome tax assets (net) if 73 Qa5
[R] Other nonscurnant a2sets i1 52,55 15,65
Total non-currant assets 4,805, 08| A3,176.76
Current assats
{a] Inven tories 12 775.43 30053
(B} Finamncial assecs -
[} Trade recelvables 13 7,475.00 4, 70078
[if}y Cash and cash equivalents 14 Shd 83 aTe
(iii} Bank balances other than (i) above 15 10.00 767
{iv} Other finoncial assats 8 1237 213
{c} Other cusrant assets 11 260.75 26503
Tatal current assets 5,482.90
Total assets 13,753.36 9,555.66
I | EQUNTY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} EQuity share capital 16 1.00 1.00
{b Other equity 17 [B26.59) {BD2.11)
Tartal Equity {&25.59) {80211}
Mo current iabifities
fa) Financial liabiltisag
{1l Borrowings 18 1.975.00 1,555.00
[il] Lease llabilities & T00.20 789.76
lisy Othver findncial lizbilities 19 540 15.7%
Total non-current liabilities 2,719.21 2,801.55
Currént liabilities
{a) Financial labllites
1] Borrow|ngs 18 346,00 226.00
|i} Leasa lablities [ 19052 350,79
(i) Trade payables -
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enteeprises 2n 1,384 39 BAR.93
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than miceo 2nd small
enterprlses it 9,033.85 5,730,710
{hv) Cther financial liabilities 19 345,24 295.77
(b} Other currant liakilities 1 438.64 189,03
Total current liabilities 11,849,.74 7,660,22
Total iabilitites 14,578.95 10,461.77
Total Equity snd Habilities 13,753.36 9 ,6549.66

See accompanying notos to the financial statement.

AL per our altached report of evan date
For Shah B Gupta

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 1095T4W

l:llr:h Parel

Pariner
Membership No,: 172570
LN : I51726TIBMEVEDESOZ

Place: Mumbai
Deate; 15 May 2025

Girish Unnikrish
Director
DIz 09387815




JSW GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2025

% Lakh
MNote For the year ended | For the year ended
Patticitian No. 31stMarch 2025 | 31st March 2024
I Revenue from operations 22 30,279.45 18,648.69
n Other income 23 42328 101.35
| Total incame (1+11) 30,321.73 18,750.04
v Expenses
Cost of raw material consumed 24 20,260.97 13,878.92
Purchase of stock in trade 2,385.81 595.49
Job work and service charges 560,08 99.74
Employee benefits expense 25 1,229.97 685.19
Power and fuel 162.12 85.61
Freight and handling expenses 273421 2.007.47
Other expenses 26 2,045.69 1,117.38
29,378.85 18,469.80
Less: Captive consumption = (35.34)
Total Expenses (IV) 19,378.85 18,434.46
Vv Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 942.88 315.58
amortisation (EBITDA) (NI - Iv)
V1 | Finance costs 27 313.17 208,79
VIl | Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 662,22 606.12
Vill | Loss before tax (V-VI-VII) (32.51) {499.33)
Tax expenses
Deferred tax a (2.03) (207 .88)
IX | Total tax expenses (9.03) (207.88)
X | Loss for the year | VIl - 1X) {23.48) {291.45)
Kl | Other comprehensive income / {loss) - -
Total comprehensive loss (X-X1) (23.48) {291.45)
Xl | Earnings per equity share {face value of ¥ 10/- each) 31(H {234.80) (2,914.50)

See accompanying notes to the financial statement.
Az per our attached report of even date

For Shah & Gupta

Chartered Accountanis

F.R.N. 109574W

o«

Girish Unnikrishinan Menon
Director
DIN: 03387815

Parth Pate|

Partner

Membership No.: 172670
UDIN - 25172670BMKVEDGE02

Place; Murmbal
Date: 15 May 2025
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J5W GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025

{A) Equity Share Capital

% Lakh
Particular Total
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 1.00
Movement during the year p
Balance as at 31st March 2024 1.00
Movement during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 1.00
(B) Other equity % Lakh

Particulars Reslarwas & Surplus
Retained Earnings Total

Balance as at 1st April 2023 (511.66) (511.66)
Loss for the year (291.45) (291.45)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (291.45) (291.45)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 (803.11) {BD3.11)
Loss for the year (23.48) {23.48)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {23.48) (23.48)
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 {826.59) {826.59)

See accompanying notes to the financial statement.

As per our attached repart of even date

For Shah & Gupta For and on behal
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 109574W

Parth Patel
Partner

Membership No.: 172670
UDIN ; 25172670BMKVEDGGD2

Girish UnnikrisPman Menon
Director

DN 09387815

Place: Mumbai 1k ustagl
Date: 15 May 2025
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I8N GREEN CERRENT PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2025
& Lakh
Particulars Far the y=ar For the year ended
ended Bisl March 2024
315t March 2025
A, CASH FLOWS FROM OPCRAATING ACTIVITIES:
055 BEFORE TAX {12.51) (#99.23)
Adjustmants for .
Depreciation and amasiisaton expense a2 12 0612
Property, alént and equigrent weittan-off 15930 -
Gaim on termination of jeases 139,79 [B&.651
Mon-cash axpandilune 1082 11238
Interest Income {12.49) 111.63)
Finance cost 20535 a1 52
Dperating less bafore working capital changes 106757 7.
Adiustment far movisnant in working capital ©
{increase) in Trade recehabios {22822} |1,766.00)
[incraase) / Decraase i inventarias 374804 R85
{increase| wn financial and other assels 10692} (1563}
merease in Trade payobles 4,74650 150024
Cash flow far Operations 119485 39500
incame taxes paid [net) i17.78} (442}
Wt Cash Generated From Dperating Activity [A) 218007 380,59
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Funthase of progerty, plant equipment intangible assets and capital sdvances (132240 {1,033.64]
Bank depasit not considered as cesh and cash eguivaisnts (pet] [2.33) [5.57]
Intarest racel ved 246 1103
Mt Cash Used In Inuesting Acthvities (8] 122235 Ji 02818
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Prisgeeds from nan-currant barrowings &5 O 1, 750000
Repaymant of non-current borrawngs [325.000 |657.000
Payment for teass fahiktes [179,459) |-t.‘|2.?2]1
Interast padd [220.05) | 188 67
Nat Cash Ganarated From Finanding Activitles | C] (w00.54) 431,61
WET INCREASE [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [A+B+(] 558.17 {245 58]
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMNING OF THE YEAR B.7E 152,74
CASH AND CASH ECUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR [Refer Note 14) 560.53 6,76
* Includes current) nen-current
Reconciliation forming part of cesh Row siatement & Lakh
15t Aprll 2024 Hlihﬂmmnb How Loasas Other* Fist March 2025
Particulars
Borrowangs [noncument] [Includng current matuiities of [Bngterm borrawings L2200 9500 4 311.00
Inchiged io urresk borrgwing note-18)
| ase Nabilities {including curiest mat writies) L154.55 [4E3.60) 324.66 128.79] 090 a7
15t Apwril 2023 | Cash flow ‘H-!ﬂ Mty Leatss F1st March 20024
Diber®
|Particulars
Borrowings [non<urrent) [including current maturities of oag-term borrowings 1,129.00 1,083,00 Lrim
i Le-1H]
Liseses liahilities [including curment matuirities] 1,952.63 {1,089.4%) FFTh 5,65] 115955

Sea accompanying rates to the financial siatement.
Motes:

1. The Cash Flow Satemant has been prepared under the” indirect method"as set out in IND AS 7. Staterent o
|2. *Others comprise of Gan an lermination of eases

A pér our attached repart of even date

|Far Shah & Gupta For and
Chartered Accountants
E LWL 100574W
L
Farkh Patel Girish Unnikrichn
Partner Director

Membership Mo 312670 DUN: (3BTRS

UDIN : 2517267 0BMEVESGEE02

Plece : Mumbai
Cate: 15 May 2025




15W GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025
|Note 4 Property, plant and equipment T Lakh
‘Duuipﬂnn of Assels Bujidings Plamt and Furniture | Computers Office Tatal
Machinery and Expiprnints
Finturas

1. Cast

Balance 55 at Lst April, 2023 EENL 155573 34.93 2428 . 1.65237%
Additions 17294 50 S0 4180 14.26 104 1,134.94
Deductions - : - . 3
[Batance as at 315t Mareh, 2024 21073 | 246013 16.73 18.54 104 2,767.17 |
Ruddiricuns 170,65 E41 54 i e IT.E2 . A63.04
Deductons® 2129 420,36 - 3 247165
{Balance a5 at 315t March, 2025 360,09 288131 99 95 6616 1.04 3,808.56
IL, Accumislated depreciation

Balance as at 1=t Agqil, 2023 162 137.73 465 645 - 17291
Depreciaton expense for the pear 957 154.87 5.00 915 .04 17872
|Deduchions = 3 = & .
|Batance as at 315t March, 2024 13.29 31266 5,55 16.00 .4 151 64
Depraciation expense for the year 28.42 21315 785 1498 0.z0 16470
Deducticn:= B.31 F7.05 . - - Ba.77
Bakance a5 at 31st Mareh, 2025 35.40 447 .85 17.60 30.98 za 532.00
Net book valus

Balance 3s at 31st Mareh, 2025 32459 243346 B2 36 3518 080 2.876.29
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 197 .44 1aa7.47 67.08 1259 1.00 2,435.53
*Deduction of PPE Include write off of certain civil and machanical structure raving its residual value st Deonar plant book value of ® 157, 3iakh {as at
A1MT March, 20@4 £ NIL)




JSW GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

5. Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

CWIP Ageing Schedule

As at 31st March, 2025 F Lakh
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than | 1 -2 year |2 - 3 years| More than Total
1 vear 3 years
Project in progress 147.90 6.29 13.28 145,86 31333
Project temporarily suspended - -
Projects with cost overrun / fimeline delayed - - - = -
Total 147.90 6.29 13.28 145.86 313.33
As at 31st March, 2024 ¥ Lakh
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of
Lessthan| 1-2year |2 - 3 years| More than Total
1 year 3 years
Project in progress 930 14.61 0.26 145.61 169.78
Project temporarily suspended - B
Projects with cost overrun / timeline delayed - - - = -
Tatal 9.30 14.61 0.26 145.61 169.78




Metes 6 Right of Use assets and Lease Hability

S\ GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2025

¥ Lakh
Description of Assets Leasahold Land | Plant and machinery | Total Right of Use
Aseti

I. Cost

Balance as at 1st Apeil, 2023 1,514,07 933.54 244766
Addittons 13594 256.83 gz
Deductions 1168 53] (665.58) (834,51
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1.481.52 524.44 2,005.96
Additions - 32466 324.66
Deductions [655.84) [36.99) [726.88)
|Balance as at 31st March, 2025 791.63 812.11 1,603.74
Il Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at Lst Apnl, 2023 #72.33 195.40 B6&T.73
Depreciation expense for the year® 283 21 168 89 451.10
Deductions [35.68) (111,88} (14756}
[Balance as at 315t March, 2024 714.86 252.41 971.27
Depreciation experse for the year 153.67 142,99 1%6,66
Deductions (624,32} (19.11) {653,43)
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 338.21 376.29 714.50
Net book valus

Balance as at 31st March, 2025 453,42 435.82 889.24
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 762,66 272.03 1,034.69

as project cost and |5 capitatised.

Leaso Liabilities

* Depreciation amounting T NIL ( for the year endad 31st March, 2024 % 74,05 Lakh) had been considered

Particulars T Lakhy
At 1 April, 2023 1,952.93
Additions 37776
Interast acorued™ 137.05
Lezse principzl payments {412 724
Lease intarast paymests {137.05)
Reversal (758.42)
At 31 Mareh, 2024 1,158.55
Addithons 3868
Interest accrued 107 .62
Leass printipal payments {3972.72)
Lease interast payments {107.82)
|Reversal | 200066}
At 31 March, 2025 GI0.82

* Interast with respect to lease Fability amounting to % NIL { for the year ended 3151 March, 2024 T 18.77 Lakh) had been
considered as propect cost and i capitafised.

|Eraakup of leage fiabilities: T Lakh
As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars 2025 2024
Current 290.62 69,79
]Nun Current 700.20 789,76
Total 930.81 1,159.55

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as 2t 31 March 2025 on an undiscounted

basls:

LR Al

FRN: 103574W




J5\W GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2025

¥ Lakh)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
|Particulars 2025 2024
|Loss than 1 1 1 33664 451,55
1-5 years 713.64 Ts0.97
meore than 5 years 136,27 183,81
1,186.56 1,386.33

|Nete 7 Intangible assets % Lakh
[Particulars Seftware Total

1. Cost

Balance a5 4t 1st April, 2023 107 1.07
Additions 0.36 038
Deductions - .
Balance az 8t 315t March, 2024 143 1.43
Additbons 4.68 4.68
Deduttions = =
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 6.11 6.11
Il Accumulated amartisation and

impalrment

Balance as at st April, 2023 = =
amortization expenses for the year 0.38 038
Dedictbons - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 0.38 0.38
Amaortization expenses far the year 0.87 087
Deductions a v
Halance as at 315t March, 2025 1.25 1.25
Net book value

Halance as at 315t March, 2025 4.86 4.86
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 1.05 1.05

The Company does not face a significant Equidity risk with regards 1o it's lease labilities o the current assels are softicient to
meet the obligations related to lease labiltities as and when they fall doe (refer note ne. 31(g))
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g detE duning el voar| bt wethout addimg the interest tpestiied unser 501 At
el The amoenoiof tersr seeriisd and ssmaining unnaid
L] Tha amaunrof farthes intesest remaning dus snd peysble svan in the socoseding years, ol buch Sme whan b ey
sy b e actual by pad to ohe aenall enenrise, fir she pumns s of dhalewenee of o dedus b= seoenitng urder
acticn T
1. tiherpurrent labiinies ek
Partizilar My gl At
Wlevitnreh, | A3e March, 2025
Adaareai lree customens Famm B
Cuher Labiltis
SRy dum pipakle 3RS | LA
_— Tiotal AR | [T
3. v Franm Dy ke Tk
Fad Ahm ym For the year
| Particulam. e sriidmid
Alan March B3N | Tixr Masch 008
Reunnue o G wiih dilaser
Falo of meiimdetamd produ s 17355106 1750229
Seie of traded goods LRk 9 g
Sabe af servces 1021 &n 21147
Tatal 3,775 15,520 60
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pmmmgmw Tk
Fartiesdam P tha paar Far 4w your

il it
IIR March B025 | TEat Mmrch 2004
Carurnsad i 32095 18,6330
Ll Tiade Dicuunt, Volume; Rehses =i ﬂlgﬂ |_I5I-__:I_§.
vt Iron coearact with cus e 27035 13, ha8. 63
|Produst wise burrsa s
Parsiculir For the paar Fow the year
mriins madnd
[ 3260 MWlarch 2028 | W1a1 March 2035
—— |
Fzady Mb Concreie | IT M35 SE0O00 33
| Copairystian Chimca | zuawm Eas 45
| Eaial | 3017945 AEEAR &0

il AR 115 Rarverson from ConEracks with Destomen

Tha Camsany mENEET ravenum whin Comimil ores M prdsmysd gaods o serveg 3 Aranshered bo the conzpmes at s @mount thatiglieoz b
crnyider snn towhich hmmmmmmmgﬂmmwhmﬂmm ér dardirey

The Company hae sssessed and dabspreeed the loliow'sy calaperkes ler divsgeregatinn of reveroe in additian it pevided inder sapeant deciosure il nate 31 el

Sakh
Partioslars For tha yaar Feer th year
endu [T
Slaz Mawch J025; 3181 Mand N04
BlevenuE [POen DO oy with sl 30,270.45 10 FAR B
| CHel{ GO iing TevnuE i E
| Tatal rewdny froi opiralionk ELES LLRLIE ]
India I ITAE TILEAR &
| Quisids inda = =
| Total reveniie from aperminn 30,2765 EIELTRCA
| Timing of revenue recegntitinn
| Ak paint in time 30,179 43 IRESR G |
| it revemue from oeseazinng 011945 1B59050 |
CowsaSaees 000 Tain
(Porberfarm Ferthe e Far e yegr
Tricte recewakles [reder noes 18] 738500 4 THLTR
Comrad Liahiifies
Advanoe from cughomen | rafer sobe 310 L 105.78
Fhim ceabisd Rasility oultldngd myg di i bagnning ol the yeor has been meognised m cevenun duriag the s anded decch 11, 315
23, Dtser ncema Takh
tenieulin FarEwyear | Forthe year
undes oy
iyt inturme
- Fenmi ciseri 129 [
Gadipezs farean athan uf ks ann Hinst
M scepnens income Aok
Todal ArIN nL3as
[ Lot of rmw ristwrin| cocaumed Makh
Pattizulass P EEE
ended ended
Ll Hﬂhm_i Flxt March 2024
Frventory &7 the beginning af e ek T SR
Aghd ; Purchases ALy LTI 0E
Lga: nwantory af Tre ped Of the paar |505.TH 3504
Tairal
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|45, Bmalayue barefs smene TLakh
Parfleniiin For ihn yoar Far e year
mhilerd enides
F1ut Warele P08 | Bul March PO
Baluries sl wages [WITETH [T
Shalf wnifern mapemos 1551 110
Tatal 123997 EES.18 |
5. Chbar espense
O fakn
Fartiailary
For the year Tar thi yoar
andmd emted
Sdur ilareh 200s $182 Meech 2004
Censumiilion ol slnmes and sparay 160,61 G
Pazking Cosl 36547 AR
Rispelrs and msniemarre axpenssy
iy £0y mackineny ‘{EAT 51aa
Bkl a7l LER
Aund {refer nobe £ (18] ]
Mgy A ey E4£L 33
Imaurancs B 150
Lmgwi & profErsnnz 1881 PAlBE ]
Advertissrant kb publedty 4550 La
o bor on sales [ TRE] 184.50
Atabes & deoounts 1563 &
Sulling & ginir buiion expennes N R
Brording mes - L3
A bony rermineRbnn (sefer nolo 3 =10 .04
Froperly, oant aod equiprrent erimsnelf 157,38
Rostage & belephane s i
Prinbag & siatonery ansy LRSS
Timuebing experaes E5ER daa
Sfrwque and 1T related ewpenses o7
Benntion (He I
Enrriractanl labeur ssperses 2E3597 MR AR
Pevnvisinn lor dnuhitel sebt B ap 4
el mape-ies 11233 10 B4
Torm 10558 [RTT AT
LHTER
u| Auiiditain Femunerstion jescludmg tas)
Takh
Forihe year For thin yoae
Pardirilary i mradn
" W JOFS | 317 Marck 204
Midil Faen
Salytory Audh aim M
im 10
Total 5 0
|&T, Finanis Cosls Tiakh
Parcatany Fourthe yeas For tha yaur
e ended
Hlan Starch 2008 | M Miarch 2074
Inlaresk superass M 23 BaAl
Irslwrmnd o lwnse s il nTE: 11528
Uil lnsrerai el - SLuz (VB Li]
Tntsl FLELT 20379
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Ll Egndldm and asorisabion Wakk
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W GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE UMITED
MOYES T THE FINAMOLAL STATEMENTE A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2005

Nate 29
Fimancial instruments
A, Caplvad risk mansgement

Makehoiders through opimum mix of dest and seuley.

Trar chijective IV to maintsin a strong credit rating Realthy capitnl ratios ord extsblish 2 capital sractire et wosle maslmise the Petui te

The-principsl aoures of funding of the Campany has bean, and s expeoted 10 continge B be, coih gereralsd fiom is operations supalsmentss by
funcleg fram Hiddimg Compmny. The Company iz aof subject 10 any sxtemslly Imposed il requiremants.

The Camgary monitors its napital wsing geasing ratie, which iz i dabt deided 19 tetal equity, Met debit indhuces, intensst bearing oans ard
boerowings lass cash and cash equivalents, Sank balances other thast cash and cxb squivalsnt

i akki
Particulsrs 31at March 2025 | 3ist March 2028
Lard T Hortavings i 131100 L2200
Ltz Cash and cagh sguivalunt []-5-11 TE. 7R}
Laaa: Bank Balncas other than cash and cash dguivalents 410.00) TER
Net Debs LG0T & 207,58
| Totad Epuizy |B25.58) fAO2.11)
Iﬂmmsnm {r11) |2r5)
{7 inclurfirg current maturities of long term debt
11} Bpulty includes ol eapimal and tesssve of the company that are managed as capite| {Befer rote 16 and 17}
rllﬁ DGzat 'z defires an larg-1erm sad short-term domowingy (rafer eabe 18)
B Categovies of fnancial instrumsnts
[The accointing classification of aoch categary of inoniial irstruments, and their carrng amcunts, are st abt belows;
Tiakh
Particulars 3151 March 3025 142 March 7024
Carrylng Walues Falr yade Carrylng Valoos Fair Valug
Finknclal assets 1
Msakired a1 amortied cost
rade recaivabier 732500 #,335.00 4,700.78 4,700,780
ash and cash aguivalents 554393 564.93 ] 874
Bani balancas athar than cash and
cash aaivalents 160G 10,00 7E? PET
Othar firancial sisets 31393 313,9% 1BA.58 1HE 58
Total financial sssets at amoied coil EJLLES [STEN 1.803.75 A.303.7%
Firvantlad labilities
|Mieacured a1 mmortised cost
Long tesm borrowings L3100 132100 113200 LE1.00
wRaH linbilily 290,489 90.82 pE R 115955
Trade payabiy 100428 24 1042828 BSTT.53 57363
iJihe fimancial limbilities #00.25 40025 511 58 I11.56
Tatal fimancial lisbiGties st amortised cos 14,14032 T4,40.37 10,777.74 10.272.74

[T ibciuding current maturities of iomg term debit

wpprgsimate their o wmiues.

|Fair value of Financlal Assets and Laibilihes measured ot
amiortiynd cost

aparsimate thaeir faor values.

Tha misnagement considers that the carmying amaunts of fingszial ssssts and financizl kabilites receqniiad Ik the financal stel=ments

That ranagement conyiders that the camrying amount of tha Finascial aessts and fnancisl lisbilsins recognised in e Bnencial staternents




FEW GREEN CEMENT 2RIVATE LINITED
MENTES 7O THE FINAROIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 3025

. Financlal tisk managamant
Thi risk mansgement pofices are established te ensuras tmely igentication and evalustion of risks, setting acceptable rik throshalds, dantitving
md mapoing controds s et these ik manitor the risks and their limits, (mprove risk awsrerass and Tranvne ey, ek s e ng pliches
wykbermd ard revewed regufarly o reflect chianges in che markot condimons and the C 't mctivities to grovide reliabie information to the
Masingernent and the Soard to evaliate the adequacy of the ek mansgement framewark i relation b the risk facod by tha Company,

e 1k managameant palices aims 10 mingte the folawirg vaks arining Irem the financinl irstruments=
= Barket i

+ Intetest rate rigk

= Cradit ridk

o L aieity rusk; amd

+ Comriondity risk

| Mariet rish

[ ammmt sk Inthae ek that the fair value of Fubiss cech flews of @ finanlel st mert will luctssts berause of chang=s ir the market prises.
Compltarce with palices and cxposar (imits i reviewesd by the Manogement and the internal audizons on @ cortinue bk, The Company does
notenter inte or trade financal Instruments, meluding dervatives for speculativ purpases,

[i. InTecast rale rith
Interest rate rlge i ine risk that the hir valee or future cash fows of & firencisl Instrument will lustuste because of changes o market interest
ralms. The Company is exposed 1o bnterast rate risk because funds are borrowed at figating mberest rates,

Triz-following talis nrenides & bresk-ip of the Company's Aoating rate borraw(ng

akh
|Particular s At Ag Al
215t March 2025 | 3141 March 2008
Flued rati Borrowing: . .
Floating rate barrowings 332100 132000
| grats barrowings 23700 227200 |
[Less: Uplrons fees | e -
Todal borrowings ] 237100 121200

| The s=psitinty snafyses below have neen determined bas=don the expasure to mtursst rates lon iosling rat= Sbilities sssuming the smaunt of the lability cutanding
at e year-end wins dutstanding for the whale year,

| intmsasi rates had besn 106 basis pomits higher / lkewer 3nd 311 ather unrintiles wore neld constant, the Campany's foss for the year endad Sist March 5025 would
ecwase | increase by € 2222 Lakh {for the year ended 315t Merch 2024: decrease |/ increass by @ 11,23 Lakh], THis s macaly atorbotable 1o the Conpam’s axposune b
inimrEEE rates o wE e hle e b rewings.

i, Credit rigk management
edit risk refern 1o thie £5k thal @ counterpacty will defsult on its contractual sbligatiens resditing Ir finsncial les: to the Company. Credn sk

wncompasees of both, e direct sk of defawlt and the rk of deterioretion of creditworthiness 2 well as concentration risks, The Company kas
adngien & poficy of onlv deadng with ereditworthy counterpartied and obtaining weffidont callaterz], whars appropriats, By s masns & metigating
tree rish of financial loss fram defeulis

Traibe racaivabbi

The cutstanding trade recatvablas sre regulirly monitersc and sap-opnsce actian @ taken for collection of ovendis recenibles. The doubtiul
arrUnt (s profudad faed an the snafpsis cone on ciue to caso Biass, Dur kstedeal saperlence of callacting ratelvables indicata a low credit risk.
Hence, tracd receivables are considersd th be 3 singhe Saks & fnainclsl assets.




F5W GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
METES TO THE FINARCIAL STATERSENTS AS AT AMND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH 2028

iw. Liquidity rish management

Latiudity risk I8 the risk that company wil mot be ebie to meet it finanicial chlations as they become due, The Company marage figaidity risk by
mirtaming adequace resene knd raserve barrowing faciTies by continuouil menitoring forecact and actual cash flows ant by matching the
maturity profie af finenclel sissts and linbiter

Thir fesSawing inbles detml the: Compary’'s rmoning contractua maturity for s non-derivare nendal lekilites with sgresd reaayment pericds
jend ity non-demative fladnekl ssats. The tables haue bean drawn up based on the undiscounted cash fiows of finarcist labilites based o ine
warliast date on which the Company can ba requied 1o iy, The tables mcuds bath interest and grircips’ cash fows.

i Vure as at 0TS %lakh
Comtractual cash flons
[Particufar =1 year 15 ynas »Eysar | Taitaid
Fiiiancial assets |
Cash anid cish aguiyulunts 554,93 = S 64.93
Bank ba'snces ather thar cash snd cash equivalents 0.0 . 10.08
Trade nacalvelhe 7.325.m0 - . 7,325.00
iSther financial assnty L L 0175 z 31392
Totad Financiil issets 7.912.10 LTS | - 831380

Financisl liabilities

Larg tarm barrowlngs ircleding currert maturibes and — 230818 ’ 166217
Interest
Triche payvalle EQa38.34 - 10,438.24
Li=zze Hamility 190,53 SFR.0A 12313 3082
ket fancial liobifdies 448, 34 501 - A00.3%
| Tesal fmancial labdities | 11,438.12 28214 13213 1450547
| Witmaiclity sxposure a5 at 315t March 2024 Tiakh
Contractual gash Maws
o« § Yo 1-5 yiEar » & ymars Tatal

E.TE - - £ Th
Bank baiznces other than cagh and cash equivalents 757 = B Ta7
Trage receivakies &,700. T 43007
|Cithar financinl assets 213 18845 - 1E4.58
Tokad Flnandial sisets 4,717.54 18645 - 4,303.79
Fimancial [Iabilities
Lang term acorawings |mhusling eurrant masuribes and e S ) 3avitg
interesk
Trode pakahle BAYE ES - . 657963
Lugs liahilises 3979 Bh i Ga Iz L159.53
[eher frarcini lnbssies R 15.79 - 31158
Todal Rnancial lebilides TATLAG 267543 12242 10.272.74
) Commodity price risk
The Company purchases its ravwe materlal and traded goocs for monstriction chemieal dedsion in the open markst from third oarties. The Campany is therators subpect bo

£igeiE I prices for the purchase of Bulk Fzw matersland trded goods, To mansge the risk, The company Lake steps 10 reduce (ne ot and (he proeseses and
poicled raluted 19 such risk ane reviewe d and controlled by seior manogement




Note 30 Related party disclosue as per Ind A5 24 :
A Mame of Related partias

1 Holding
J5W Cermant Limited

2 Fellow Subsldiary Company
(I} Shiva Cement Limited
(i1} Utkarsh Transpart Private Limited
(i) Cemterra Enterprise Private Limited wef 05th July, 2024

3 Mon Executive Directors
Mr. Wilesh Narwekar {Director)
Mr, Manoj Kumar Rustagi (Director)
M. Girish Unnikrishnan Menon (Trector)

4 Other related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions
Windsor Residency Private Limited
Utkarsh Transport Private Limited
15W Glabal Busingss Solutions Limited (formerly known as Sapphire Technologies Limited)
15w One Distribution Limited
I5W Steel Limited
15W Stee! Coated Products Limted
ISW Vijayanagar Metallics Limited
ISW Cement Limited
15W Techno Project Management Limited
ISW lalgarh Port Limited

B Transactions with related parties for yoar ended % Lakh

Particulars Other related parties
FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24

Purchase of Goods/ Power & Fuel/ Services:
1SW Cement Limited 7,084.10 4,481.14
15W Steel Limited 54,61 -
15W Global Business Solution Limited 20,59 BE.35
Tatal 7,238.31 |  4,549.49
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf by:
15W Ceinent Limited 122637 671,28
Total 1.226.37 671.28
Sales of Goods [/ Services ¢
J5W One Distribution Limited 6.04 3.22
ISW Stee| Limited B, 146,72 2,133.99
15W Steel Coated Products Limted 0.26 -
15W Vijayanagar Metallics Limited 213.88 100.25
I5W Cement Limited 114.71 14.30
I5W Techno Project Management Limited 35.85 5.71
I5W Jaigarh Port Limited 3.75 -
Intérest paid on loan /deposit taken from
I8W Cement Limlited 201.40 101.39
Total 201.40 101.39
Loan repaid
15W Cement Limited 326.00 657.00
Tatal 326.00 &57.00
Loans Received:
15W Cement Limited 425 00 1,750.00
Total 425.00 1,750.00

* Amount excludes duties and taxes




Terms and Conditions
Sales:

The sales to related partios are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm’s length transactions and in the
ordinary course of business. Sales transactions are based on prevailing price lists and memorandum of understanding
signed with related parties, For the year ended 315t March 2025, Lhe Company has nat recarded any loss silowances of
trade recevable from related parties

Purchases:

The purchases from related parties are made on terms eguivalent to those that prevail inarm's length transaciions and in
the ordinary course of business. Purchase transactions are based on normal commercial terms and conditions and market
rates,

Amoiint due to ffrom related parties % Lakh
Particulars Other related parbies
FY 2024-25 | FY 2023-24
Trade Payables
15W Cement Limited 5,264.63 2,E32.86
I5W Global Business Solution Limited E.30 4113
Tatal 527293 2,273.99
Advance given
J3W Steel Limited 5305 -
Trade Receivablas:
15W Cne Distribution Limited 1.00 213
15W Steel Limlted 2,959.02 911.15
15W Vijayanagar Metallics Umited BB.73 49.31
15W Cement Limited 54.57 9.86
I5W Techno Praject Maragement Limited 2.24 6.74
1SW lajgarh Port Limited*® 0.00 -
Total 3,105.57 979.19
Loan taken
I5W Cement Limited 2,331.00 2,722.00
Taotal 2,321.004 2,222.00
interest Payable on Loan Availed
15W Cement Limited (Net of TDS) 4481 3B,59
Total 44.81 36.59
*amount below % 0.50Lakh
Motes :

The transactions are disclosed Under various refationships based on the status of related parties on the date of transactions.




ISW GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

31. OTHER NOTES

a) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of disputed claims/ levies: NIL

b} Commitments:

Rlakh
5r. No. | Particulars As at 31 As at 317
March, 2025 | March, 2024
1] Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be 13390 3.05

| executed on capital accounts and not provided for
{net of advances)

c) In the opinion of the Management, the current assets have a value on realization at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet In the ordinary course of business. Provisions are for
all known liabilities and the same is adequate and not in excess of what is required.,

d) The company Is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain Trade Payables, Advarces and

Trade Receivables. The management does not expect any material difference affecting the amount at which
they are stated.

e) Segment reporting:
The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing and sale of Readymix Concrete and trading of
construction chemical products. As per IND A5 108 "Operating Segments” specified under Section 133 of

the Companies Act 2013, there are no other reportable business applicable to the company.

The information relating to revenue from external customers and location of non-current assets of its single
reportable segment has been disciosed below,

a) Revenue from operations

. X Lakh
Particulars For Year ended For Year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Domestic 30,279.45 18,648.69
Export - -
Total 30,279.45 18,648.69 |

b) MNon-current operating assets

All non —current assets of the Company are located in India.

MUKRAI

RN: 1p9574W




f} Earnings per share (EPS):

Forthe year | Forthe year |
Particulars ended ended
| 31* March 2025 | 31* March 2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (SLakh) (A) (23.48) {291.45)
Weighted average number of equity shares at for basic EPS 10,000 10,000
(B)
Effect of dilution = :
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the 10,000 10,000
| effects of dilution (C) =
Basic EPS (Amount in %) : (A/B) (234.80) {2914.50)
Diluted EPS [Amount in %) : (A/C) | (234.80) (2914.50)

gl Asat 31st March, 2025; the current liabilities exceeds current assets of the Company by % 2,901.46 Lakh.
Basis predicted cash flows from operations for the financial year 2025-26 and support from Holding
company, the management Is confident that the Company would be in a position to service its liabilities
in the faresesable future,

Other statutory information:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5]

(6)

(7)

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year,

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s] or entity{ies), including foreign entities

(funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company

shall:

(a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

[b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has complied with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

The Company is not declared willful defauiter by any bank or financials institution or lender during
the year,

lfmm ,
FAN: T09574W




i

{8) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with ROC
beyond the statutory period.

{9) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the
Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)
disclosed in the financial statements included In property, plant and equipment and capital work-in
progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date,

{10)The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.

The Company has been maintaining its books of accounts in the SAP which has feature of recording
audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled,
throughout the year as required by proviso to sub rule (1) of rule 3 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 known as the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021. The Company did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software for the period
for which the audit trail feature was operating.

The Audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

Financial Ratios



Particulars MNumerator Denominator Mar-25 Mar-24 Variance Reason for variance
Current Ratio | Current Current 0.76 0.72 6%
{ times) Assets Liabilities
Debt Equity Total Borrowings Total Eguity -2 81 277 1%
Ratio { times) | (i.e. Non-current
borrowings +
Current
borrowings)
Debt service | Profit beforetax+ | Scheduled 1.16 0.29 195% Impact of Improvement in
COVErage Depreciation and principal term Revenua due to Sala
ratio ( times) | amertisation lnans repaid and Quantity
expenses + interest | interest thereon
on Lerm loans and | (i.e. excluding
debenture prepaid and debt
+ Adjustment for refinanced) +
non-cash expense | Finance lease
and incame lighility and
interest thereon,
Return on Net profit after tax | Average 3% 44% -94% | Impact of Improvement in
Equity (%} Sharehoider's Revenue due to Sale
EgQUITY QUHT‘I“W
Inwentony Average Inventory | Manufacturing 9 12 -24% | Increased in No. of Planis
Turnover cost (including has reduced the average
ratio | Days) Raw material, days
power 8 fuel, and
manufacturing
| overheads)
Debtor's Bverage Trade MNet Sales 72 75 -3%
Turnover Receivables
ratio | Days) 1
Trads Awerage Trade Cost of goods sold 106 | 110 4% |
Payable payables
turnowver
ratio (Days) L
Net Capital Net Sales Working capital 22% | Impact of Improvement in
Turnaver {current assets — -10.44 -B.56 Revanue due to Sale
_:_Elﬂﬂ-{ timas) current Habilftles) Cuantity
Met Profit Wet profit for the Revenue from 0% -2% -85% | Reduction In Losses due to
Ratio [ %) year operations improvement In performance,
Aetum on Profit before tax Total Asset minus 12% -259% -140% | Impact of Improvement in
Capital plus Interest Current & non Revenue due to Sale
Employed expense and Current Liabilities Quantity
{ %) adjustment for non | and Intangible
cash income Assets




k) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date
For Shah & Gupta

Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 109574

atel
Partner
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JSW GREEN CEMENT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2025

1. General Information

J5W Green Cement Private Limited ["the Company”) is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of ready mix
concrete and trading of Chemics! construction products. The Company is operating RME plants st Mumbai, Dolvl, Pure
and Aurangabad, Maharashtra, Barbil Odisha, Hyderabad Telangana,

15W Green Cement Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated in India on November 18, 2019 under the
Companies Act, 2013, The registered office of the Company [s Babukhan millennium, Centre, 6-3-1099/1100, Na. 702,
A Block, Somajiguda, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500082,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. Statement of Compliances

The Financial 5tatements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in Indfa including Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) prescribed under the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time} and presentation and disclosures requirement of Division |l of revised Schedule 1l of the Companles Act
2013, {ind AS Compliant Schedule 111}, as applicable to financial statement.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Financlal Statermnents which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together
herelnafter referred to as “financial statements").

These finzncial staternents are approved Tor Issue by the Board of Directors on 154 May 2025,
. Basis of preparation and presentation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting year, as explained in the accounting policies balow.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly obseryable
or estirmated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes in account the characteristics of the asset or liability IF market parkicipants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing tranzactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS116, fair value of plan assets within the scope of ind AS 19 and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use
in Ind AS 36.

Inaddition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 baced
on the degree to which the Inputs to the fair value measuremants are obsarvable and the significance of the
inpits to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

hitimaal f



= lLevel 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or lizhilitles that the
entity can access at the measurament date;

® Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices Included within level 1, that are observable for the asset
ar liability, either directly or indirectly; and

+  Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Financial Statement is presented in INR which is the functional currency of the company. All the values are
rounded to the nearest Lakhs excepl when otherwise stated,

Current and non-current classification

.

The Company presents assets and liabllities in the balance sheet based on current [ ron-current classification.
An asset Is classifjed as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

s It is expected to be realised in or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal cperating
cycle, it is held primarily for the purpese of being traded;

= ltis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

* It s cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabllity for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A llability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

*  ltis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycls;

s [tz held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

* |t s due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or the Company does not have an
uncenditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, Terms
of a liability that could, &t the option of the counterparty, result in s settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-cuerrent.

The operating cycle |s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The company has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non- current only.
Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods

The Company recognises revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

The Company has generaliy concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typically controls
the goods or services befare transflerring them to the customer.

flevenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions,
incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of

revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.




iii)

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are deliverad to customer,
or when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale which s when the control over product is transferred to the
custamer.

B. BRevenue from Sale of Services:

i income from services rendered is recognized at a point in time based on agreements /
arrangements with the customers when the services are performed and there are no unfulfilled
obligations,

it) Revenue from contracts with customers for combined output comprising of goods and services for

which consideration receivable by the Company is determined on the basis of surface area applied is
recognized at a point of time when such combined output Is delivered to customers' satisfaction as per
agreed milestones and customers acknowledge their obligation to pay for such output In accordance

with terms and condition of underlying contracts. Obljgations under sach milestene are performed over

short durations.

Contract Balances

i

fii

iv)

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the parned consideration,

Trade receivabie

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered and to the extent that it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or aother financlal assets (i.e. only the passage of time 5 required befare
payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabllities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services te a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or 2n amount of consideration Is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier], Contract |labilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract including Advance received fram
Customer,

Refund labilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customerandis measured atthe amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer
including volumerebatesanddiscounts, The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of
each reporting period,

Dividend and interest income




Bividend Income from investments Is recognised when the shareholder's right to recelve payment has been
established {provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably),

Interest income from & financial asset is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably, Interest income is accrued on a time basls,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which s the rate that
exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that assel’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Leasog

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, @ lease. That s, If the contract
canveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for & period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessor

Leases in which the Company dees not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an asset are classified a5 operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a st ralght-line basis over
the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in nogotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income,
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned,

Company as lessee

The Company appiies a single recognition and measurament spproach for all feases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities ta make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets ar the commencement date of the lease (i, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
tepreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and ad|usted for any remeasurement of ease [labilities. The
cast of right-of-use assets Includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, inltial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any |ease incentives recelved. Unless the
Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the lsased asset at the end of the leaze term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term is as follows.

Sr. ITulu. Class of assets Years
1 Leazehald land | 5-10 Years
2 Plant and Machinery 5 Years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is ealculated using the estimated useful [ife of the asset. Right-of-
uLse assets are subject to Impairment test,

The Company accounts for sale and lease back transaction, recognising right-of-use assets and lease liability,
measured in the same way as other right-ofuse assets and lease liability. Gain or loss on the sale transaction is
recognised in staterment of profit and loss,




Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measurad st the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments fincluding in-
substance fixed payments] less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.,

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expensa in the period
on which the event or condition that triggers the payiment aceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate st the
lpase commencement daie if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease labilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments |e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a chapge in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases {Le., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to feases that are considered of low value {such
as tablets, computers, small iterns of office furniture and telephones). Lease payments on short-term leases and
lzases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily Lake a substantial period of time to get ready for thelr intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use
or sale.

Allother borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are
incurred.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing cosss
incurred on that borrowing during the year iess any interest income earned on temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, to the extent that an entity borrows funds
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case If the Company borrows generally and uses
the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are determined by applying
a capltalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing cost includes exchange difference arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the extent they are
regarded as an adjustment to finance cost.

Taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax




i,

Current tax (s the amount of expected tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carryling amounts of assets and llabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are recognised
for-all deductible temporary differences ta thie extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
agalnst which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such deferred tax assets and liabllities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the Initial recognition {other than in a business
combination} of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goadwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting year and reduced ta the
axtent that it s no longer probahle that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered,

Minimum Alternate Tax [MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as a deferred tax asset if there is convinging
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT Is recognised as an asset in the
Balance Sheet when |t is highly prabable that future ecoromic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which
the liability Is settled or the asset reallsed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities are offset if & legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit and loss, except when they are relating to Items that are
recagnized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
a8lso recognised [n other comprehensive income or directly in eguity respectively, Where clurrent tax or deferred
tax arises from the initlal accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is Included in the accounting for
the business combination,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates,
any Import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax autherities), any
directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, Including relevant barrowing
costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decammissioning, Expenditure incurred after the property,




plant 8 equipment have been put into the operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to
statement of profit and loss in the year In which cost are incurred. Malor shutdown and overhaul expenditure
is capltalised as the activity undertaken improves the economic benefit expected to arise from the assets.

Spares parts, servicing egquipment and standby equipment which can be used only in connection with a
particular Plarit & Equipment of the Company and their use Is expected to be irregular, are capitalised at cost,
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic hepefits
are expected to arize from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and eguipment is determined as the difference betwaen the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the assel and is recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss. '

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised In the assets under Capital work in progress. At the point
when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred 1o the
approprigte category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Costs associated with the
commissioning of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised where the asset is available
for use but incapable of operating at normal levels, revenue (net of cost) generated from production during the
trial period is capitalised,

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or adminlstrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, |f any.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an aszet, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual vaiue. Depreciation Js recognised 50 as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as per
the useful life prescribed In Schedule || te the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of following categories of
assets, in whase case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into
account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support
etc.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

5r. No. | Class of Property, plant Useful life of
and equipment assets in years

1 Plgnt and Machinery 3to ES years

Factory Building 3 to 65 years

3 Mon-Factory Building | 310 65 years

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment sre required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives,

Mafor overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from the overhaut,
The carrying amaunt of the remaining previous overhaul cost s charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss if
the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit,

The Company reviews the residual value, useful llves snd depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.
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intangible Asspts

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination Is their fair value at the date of acgquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accurmulated amartisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost |ess sccumulated
amortisation and accumulated impalrment losses. Amortisation is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting year, with the effect of any changesin estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives thel are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Useful lives of Intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Ess of assets Years
Software 3 years

Impairment of Non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tanglble and intangible
assets 1o determine whether there Is any indication that these assets have suffered an impalrment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is net possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Cormpany estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, Where a
ressonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to Individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
@ reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of Fair value less costs to sell and value in use, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The carrying amounts of the Company's nen-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impairment loss, if any.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of raw materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of semifinished ffinished goods and work In progress include cost of direct
materials and labor and 3 proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but
excluding borrowing costs. Cost of traded goods include purchase cost and inward freight. Costs of inventories
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are determined on weighted average basls. Net realisable value represents the ostimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present abligation (legal or constructive), as s result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be reguired ta settle
such an obligation.

The ameount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
oblfigation at the balance sheet data, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,
When 2 provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a2
third party, a recelvable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present abligations arising under onerous contracts sre recognised and measured as provisions, However, befare
a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any write down that has
occurred on assets dedicated to that contract, An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has
a contract under which the unavoldable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the cantract. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which Is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the cont ract
(l.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial llabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directiy
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financizl assets and financial abilities (other than financizl acets and
financizl liabilities at fair value through Staternent of Profit end Loss (FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on Inltial recognition, Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at falr value through profit and
loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss,

A. Financial assots

a) Recognition and initial measurement

A financizl asset is initially recognised at fair value and, for an item nat at FYTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

b) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recongnition and subseguently measured at amortised cost, fair
valua through other comprehensive income (OCI) and fair value through profit and loss. A financlal asset is
measured at amortised cast if it meets both of the following conditions and is naot dezignated at FYTPL:




. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Mows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

A debt instrument is classified as FVTOC! only i It meets both of the following conditions and is not
recognised at FVTPL;

. The gsset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal smount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reparting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI),
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, curnulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCH s reclassified from the equity to Staternent of Profit and Loss. interest earned
whilst holding FYTOC! debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value. For all other equity instruments,
the Company may make an irrevocable election to present |n other comprehensive income subsequent
changes In the fair value. The Company makes such election an an instrument-by-Instrument basis, The
classification is made on Initial recognition and is Irrevocable. The equity instruments which are strategic
Investments and held for long term purposes are classified as FYTOCL

if the Company dectdes to classify an equity instrument as at PYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized |n the OCl There is no recycling of the amounts from Q€I
to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments Included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FYTPL

In addition, on Initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at smortised cost or at FVTOC) as at FYTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces and accounting mismatch that would otherwise arlse.

Financial assets at FYTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting year, with any gains and
losses arising on remeasurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized
in Standalone statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and s included in the "ather income' line item, Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when:

. The Company's right to receive the dividends is established,

. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow ta the
entity,

. The dividend does not reprecsent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the

amount of dividend can be messured rellably,
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d)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rfghts to the cash flaws from the asset
expire, of when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party,

Impairment

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortlsed cost, debt instruments at FVYTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivabies, other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not deslgnated as at
FVTPL,

Expected credit losses are the weighted aversge of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights, Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accardance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (|.e.
all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interect
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by
tonsidering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the foss allowance for a financial instrument at-an amount equsi to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since Initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since Initlal
recognition, the Company measures the lass allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected
credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shiortfalls that will result IF default occurs within the 12 months
after the reporting date and thus, are niot cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 menths.

If the Company measured |oss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss modal
in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous year,
the Company again measures the loss allowance based an 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change In the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial Instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default cccurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable Infarmation, that is avallable without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to reécelve cash or anather financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at
an amount egual to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit loss allowance
is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into avcount historical credit lose experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information.




e}

a)

b)

<)

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied
to debt instruments at FYTOCH except that the loss allowanca s recognised In other comprehensive income
and |s not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet

The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current indicators
of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets,

Effective interest method

The effective Interest method js a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs snd other premiums or discounts) thraugh the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt Instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FYTPL. Interest income is recognized n profit or lass and Is included in the ‘Other income’
line item,

Financial fiabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified as either financial fiabifities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the sssets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments {s recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, Issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘st FVTPL or ‘other financial liabilities,

Financial liabilities at FvTPL:

Financiai lizhilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
dezignated as at FWTPL,

A financial Hability is classified as held for trading if:

®  Ithas beenincurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing [t in the near term; or




* on initlzl recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it isaderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

*  Afinancial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if;

*  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwizo arise:

*  the financizl llability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial lisbilities or both, which |s
managed and ts perfarmance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accardance with the Company's
documented risk management or investrment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis: ar

= itforms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 104 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPLin accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net galn or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial lability and Is included in Statement of Profit and Loss. For
Liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk ars
recognised in OCH

The Company derecognises financial llabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carryling amount of the financial llability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cther financial liabilities:

The Company enters inta deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas lenders such
as banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier’s banks for import of raw materials and
property, plant and equipment. The banks and financizl institutions are subsequently repaid by the
Company at a later date providing working capital benefits, These arrangements are in nature of credit
extended in normal operating cycle and these arrangements for raw materials are recognlzed as part of
trade payables and the arrangements for property, plant and equipment are recognised as other financial
lizbvilities. Interest borne by the company on such arrangements is accounted as finance cost. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial lizbilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms Is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, & substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability {whether or not attributable to the financlal difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial llability, The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss,

¥, Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 2nd short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three manths or less, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalent consists of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above

Segment reporting:

Operating segments are reporied [n a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker,

The Board of directors of the Company has been identified as the Chief Dperating Decision Maker which reviews
and assesses the financial performance and makes the strategic decisions,

Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to the
equity sharehalders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the yvear,

Diluted Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and recent accounting pronouncement

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the Company is required 1o
miake judgements that have a significant impact on the amounts recognized and to make estimates and
assumplions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources,
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to sccounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future year, if the revision affects current and future year,

A} Key sources of estimation uncertainty

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such lives
gre dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and alzo their likely
economic lives based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating
costs: This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amertisation expected in future
periods,

i) Provisions and liabilities

Pravisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated. The
timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circurmnstances which may
be subject to change. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. Potential liabilities that are remate are neither recognized nor disclosed as contingent
liabifity. The management decides whether the matters needs to be classified as ‘remaote,’ ‘passible’ or
'probable’ based on expert advice, past judgements, terms of the contract, regulatory provisions ste




iii) Contingencies

It the noermal course of business, contingent llabllities may arise from litigation and other clalms against
the Company. Potential liabilities that are passible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult
to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such llabilities are disclosed in the notes but are
not recognised. The cases which have been determined a5 remote by the Company are not disclosed.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements unless when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable,

iv) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement s
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and the (evel of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategles.

v} Leases

If an arrangement contains a lease, the parties to the arrangement shall apply the requirements of ind
AS 116 to the lease element. Therefore, the Company s required to separate payments and other
consideration required by the arrangement (nta those for the lease and for other elements on the basls
of their relative fair values, However, Management has concluded that it is impracticable to separate
both the elements reliably and has recognized an asset and a liability at an amount equal to the carrying
value of the specified asset in the books of the lessor, Subseguently, the liability has been reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance charges on the liability recognized using the Company's
incrermental borrowing rate of interest over the tenure of the arrangement, The total payments less
payments made towards lease obligation and imputed finance charges have been considered to be the
consideration for elements other than lease,

In case of arrangements which are |dentified to be in the nature of finance lease, the management
concluded that it Is impracticable to derive the relative fair values of lease and other elements of the
arrangement and has accordingly determined the consideration for elements other than lease as a
residual post appropriation of lease payments derived based on lesses's incremental borrowing rate of
interest-on the lease obligation corresponding to the respective gross asset values in the books of lessor.

vi)  Expected credit loss

The policy for expected credit loss allowances for financial assets is based on the evalustion of
collectability and the management’s Judgement considering external and internal sources of
information. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realization of the
amount recejvable having regard to, the past collection history of each party, ongoing dealings with
these parties, and assessment of their ability to pay the debt on designated dates,

B) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ["MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 127 fues




and 9" September, 2024, MCA Issued the companies (Indisn Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2024 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024 introducing
following changes:

i} Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts
Insurance Contracts was introduced and Ind AS 104: |nsurance Contracts was withdrawn. This
was accompanied with consequent amendments in other standards.

{1 Ind AS 116: Leases
The amendments clarify accounting treatment for a seller-lessee involved in sale and leaseback
transactions, and introduced some related illustrative examples.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based an its evaluation has detérmined that it
does not have any significant impact n its financial statements.

There are no new or amended standards issued but not effective as at end of reporting period which
they may have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.

C] Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policy

i

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lesses,

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancelfable term of the [ease, topether with any
periods covered by an option to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certaln whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
terminatlon. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the |ease term If there 5 a
significant event or change (n clrcumstances that 15 within its control and sffects its abllity to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.




